
Children's Scrutiny Panel  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Children's Scrutiny Panel to be held as 
follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 

Chief Executive 

 
DATE: Wednesday, 8 December 2021 

 
TIME:  6.00 pm 

 
VENUE: The Salford Suite, The Old Town Hall Building, Salford Civic Centre, M27 

5DA. 

 
AGENDA 

 
 GUIDANCE FOR THE RETURN TO FACE TO FACE COUNCIL 

MEETINGS FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  

 

(Pages 1 - 6) 

1   Apologies for Absence  

 

 

2   Minutes of the previous meeting  
 

Minutes of the meeting held on 10th November 2021. 
 

(Pages 7 - 12) 

3   Childhood Obesity Strategy Update - Debbie Blackburn  
 

Presentation and report.   

 

(Pages 13 - 46) 

4   Budget Monitoring - Chris Mee - to follow  

 

 

5   Work programme & membership  

 
(Pages 47 - 50) 

6   Any Other business  

 

 

7   Date, time and business for next meeting  
 

Wednesday 12th January 2022 at 6pm (5.30pm for members pre-

meeting).  
 

 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2811 
Liz Wright E-Mail: liz.wright@salford.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



Last updated 31.08.21 

Return to face to face meetings in The Salford Suite at the Civic 

Centre from 1st September 2021 
 
It is planned to return to face to face meetings in The Salford Suite in the Old Town 
Hall Building at the Civic Centre from Wednesday 1st September 2021.   
 

The Salford Suite is the only available room that is large enough to hold meetings 
and still comply with social distancing and Covid safe guidelines, as advised by 
Public Health.  
 

Everyone involved has worked hard to ensure that the transfer of face to face 
meetings to the Salford Suite will be held in a COVID-19 secure environment. Your 
safety and that of members of the public is our upmost priority, whilst also supporting 
transparency, accountability and effective decision making.  
 

This briefing note outlines the arrangements in place and the guidelines that we are 
all asked to adhere to ensure everyone is kept safe and the city council’s decision 
making remains legally compliant. 
 

1. General guidelines for meetings 
 

a. Elected members, co-opted members with voting rights, and officer members of 
joint committees have to attend in person to participate in meetings and to make 
formal decisions.  There is, unfortunately, no option available in legislation to 
allow councillors to attend meetings remotely. 
 

b. It should be possible to hold most of the decision making meetings back in the 
Salford Suite but it will not be possible to hold the meetings of the Council, 
the Health and Wellbeing Board, Licensing and Safety Regulatory Panel 
(taxis) and Planning and Transportation Regulatory Panel, due to the number 
of people required to attend and so they will remain at 100 Embankment for the 
foreseeable future.  There may also be times, when the date and times of 
meetings clash, that one may need to move to 100 Embankment. 
 

c. The Monitoring Officer has confirmed that Lead Member Briefings, can and 
should, continue to happen remotely, including if a decision is being taken. 

  
d. Briefings or training sessions can continue to be held remotely and your clerk will 

liaise with Chairs and Lead Members as appropriate and continue to arrange 
these via Microsoft Teams. 

 
e. Meetings held in the Salford Suite will not be live streamed as this facility is 

currently not available. 
 
f. Officers of the council will not be required to attend meetings in person as they 

are not formal members of any of the committees/panels or part of the formal 
decision making process at meetings. Officers who usually attend meetings to 
present reports and/or advise at meetings are asked to continue to do so 
remotely, to reduce the numbers of people who are attending face to face and so 
help minimise the risks due to COVID-19. Officers will continue to receive 
Microsoft Teams invites for meetings. 
  

Page 1

Agenda Annex



Last updated 31.08.21 

g. Only elected members and the senior designated officer should attend the 
meeting in person. 

 
h. The venue for each meeting will be confirmed by the committee clerk and 

included in the diary invitation and published agenda for each meeting.  
 

i. The use of the Salford Suite will be dedicated to decision making meetings until 
further notice.  It will not be a bookable space on the room booking system and 
any enquires about using the room should be directed to 
decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk .  The room must be available at 
short notice for decision making purposes and the room has been set up to meet 
Covid secure guidelines for this purpose, so the layout of the room must not be 
changed.    
 

2. Using the Salford Suite for face to face meetings  

It is very important, for everyone’s safety, that members and officers only access the 

Salford Suite and the work spaces detailed in this section when attending the 

meetings.   

a. Where to enter the building 
For daytime meetings, elected members (and the senior designated officer) and 
the public attending meetings must enter the building by the main front door of 
the Old Town Hall building and take their place in the meeting room. An officer 
from Democratic Services should be on hand to direct you to The Salford Suite.   

 

 
 

For evening meetings (after 4:30pm), elected members (and the senior 
designated officer) and the public attending meetings must enter the building 
by the main reception area and press the buzzer on the Entryphone to be 
admitted by the security officer on duty. 

 

 

Page 2

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


Last updated 31.08.21 

b. Areas of the building that are closed to people attending meetings   

• Extensive rebuilding renovations are taking place in the Civic Centre so 
access to rooms and space is very limited.  Most of the building will remain 
closed and many contractors will be working on site. 

• Members of the public are also using the building to access the Registrars 
offices and the ceremony rooms and arrangements are in place for them to do 
so safely, so there will be no access to the Registrars corridor and the 
ceremony room’s corridor. 

 

c. Toilets  

• The toilets on the first floor on the committee room corridor must be used.  

The Registrars corridor will not be open to members, officers and members of 

the public attending meetings in The Salford Suite.   

• The accessible toilet can be used on the Registrars corridor if required and an 

officer from Democratic services will act as a marshal on the corridor so 

members can use it.  Please alert the clerk in attendance at the meeting on 

the day.  

d. Working areas available when attending meetings in The Salford Suite  

• For Cabinet members:  Four work spaces have been set up for you to use in 
the Deputy Mayor’s Office on the first floor on the Mayor’s corridor. 

• For other elected members:  Two work spaces have been set up in The 
Boardroom (next to The Salford Suite) for you to use. 

• For senior officers: Two work spaces have been set up for you to use in what 
was the Members Conference Room on the first floor on the Mayor’s corridor. 

 

3. Guidance for attending the meetings in a COVID-secure manner  
 

a. Lateral flow testing and PCR tests 

• A vital element of our COVID-secure plans is that everyone attending should 
complete a COVID-19 lateral flow home tests three days before the 
meeting and on the morning of the meeting.  You can order or collect a home 
testing kit by: 
- Ordering a box of test kits to be delivered to your home  
- Collecting a box of test kits from a local collection point  

 

• If you test positive before or on the day you were meant to attend the meeting 
under no circumstances should you attend.  Please email your apologies 
to Democratic Services of your decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk.  If 
your lateral flow test is positive you will then need to book a complementary 
PCR Test and follow national guidance on self-isolating.  
 

• Despite all the COVID-secure measures we have put in place there remains a 
residual risk and coronavirus can make anyone seriously ill. For some of you 
the risk is higher, particularly if you are clinically extremely vulnerable or if 
they are at significant risk or you have one or more health conditions as a 
number of risk factors may interact as well as health conditions. 

  

Page 3

https://www.gov.uk/order-coronavirus-rapid-lateral-flow-tests
https://www.salford.gov.uk/people-communities-and-local-information/coronavirus/how-to-get-tested/book-a-free-rapid-coronavirus-test/rapid-testing-sites-in-salford/
mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


Last updated 31.08.21 

• You may wish to take medical advice about your particular circumstances, if 
either of the above applies to you before you make a decision about attending 
face to face meetings.  
 

b. Attending the meeting on the day in The Salford Suite 

• Please arrive at least 20 minutes before the start of the meeting to allow for 
controlled access to the building and meeting space.  

• The meeting will be run in line with Government guidance, and using the 
principle of ‘hands, face, space and fresh air’. You are asked to regularly 
wash and sanitise your hands, wear a face covering unless you hold a 
medical exemption, and please maintain a social distance (1.5m) from others 
at all times whilst attending meetings.  

• You may remove your mask when you are seated but please wear your face 
covering when moving around the room or building. 

• Movement around the meeting spaces will be kept to an absolute minimum 
with pre-defined entrances and exits and restricted areas, as outlined above. 

• Please make sure your devices are fully charged as there is only limited 
access to electrical points in the meeting room. 

• There is no facility for providing refreshments but bottled water will be 
provided at each meeting. 
 

4. Notification of meetings and attendance at meetings  
 

a. Notification of meetings  

• You will continue to receive the notification of your meetings from the clerk in 
Committee Services by email and the papers will be available via the ModGov 
App.  

• Please take particular note of the venue for each meeting. 
  

b. If you cannot attend a meeting  

• Non-attendance at face to face meetings will impact on your attendance 
record as a councillor.  If you are unable to attend because you test positive 
for coronavirus please email your apologies to Committee Services at 
decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk. 

• If you are unable to attend for the longer term and are concerned about the 
impact of this on your attendance record, you can apply for a dispensation via 
the Monitoring Officer and Democratic Services can advise you about this.  

 

5. Meetings continuing at 100 Embankment  
 

a. Lateral flow testing and PCR tests 

The guidance listed under 3a above also applies at 100 Embankment. 

b. Travelling to 100 Embankment 

• There are a range of travel options to 100 Embankment, and full details can 
be found at this link: https://embankmentmanchester.com/transport-options. 

• It is a 4 minute walk from Manchester Victoria train and tram stations 

• The Free Bus stops outside both Salford Central Station and 100 
Embankment 

• There is secure cycle storage and showers on site. 

Page 4

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk
https://embankmentmanchester.com/transport-options


Last updated 31.08.21 

 

c. Parking at 100 Embankment 

• There is onsite parking in the underground QPark (Deansgate North) 
immediately below the building. Discounts are available for parking booked in 
advance (https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgate-
north/).  Cleminson Street remains the closest SCC parking, where councillors 
and officers are able to park using SCC parking permits.  

• Taxi drop off is available immediately to the front door of the building.  

• Where members incur additional costs from the travel to and from these 
meetings, including the cost of parking and / or taxi’s, this is recoverable via 
members’ expenses.  Please do indicate on the claim form that this is to 
attend a face-to-face meeting so that we are able to monitor these additional 
costs.  We are working with finance to ensure we can be transparent about 
the additional costs of the return to face-to-face meetings whilst restrictions 
remain in place and for the exceptional reasons for those costs to be incurred.  

Page 5

https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgate-north/
https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgate-north/


This page is intentionally left blank



Children’s Scrutiny Panel 13.10.21                                                                                                    1 
 

Children’s Scrutiny Panel 

10th November 2021 

Meeting commenced: 6.00pm 

Meeting ended: 7:35pm 
 

Present:  

Councillor Brocklehurst (in the chair) 
 

Councillors:  

Lewis Nelson; Mike Pevitt; Neil Reynolds; Madeline Wade; Joan Walsh; Collette Weir.  
 

Co-opted Members: 

Dr Keith Archer; Jacqui Morrissey. 
 

Officers: 

Kate Berry – Early Help Locality Manager 

Geoff Catterall – Head of Complex Needs: SEN  

Cathy Starbuck – Assistant Director Education and Skills 

Liz Wright – Democratic Services (Clerk) 

Members of the public: 

None 

1. Apologies for Absence 

Apologies were received from Councillor Joshua Brooks, Councillor Ari Leitner, Councillor 

Robinson-Smith, Judith Elderkin, Yolande Amana-Ghola, Dr Alex Klein.  

2. Declarations of interest 

There were no declarations of interest.  

3. Minutes of the previous meeting 
 

Resolved:  That, the minutes of the meeting held on 13th October 2021 were approved as a true 

and correct record. 

4. Matters arising from the minutes 

4a. Corporate Parenting Panel (CPP)  

The meeting of Councillor Brocklehurst, Councillor Cammell, Councillors John Walsh and 
Councillor Robinson-Smith had had to be cancelled.  The purpose of the meeting was to discuss 

the reporting of CPP to the Children’s Scrutiny Panel (CSP) and would be re-scheduled. 
 
4b. Vacancies update 

The long standing Free Church representative vacancy was discussed and it was agreed that 
Councillor Brocklehurst could raise it with SACRE to see if they could propose a representative. 
 

Resolved: That, the panel agreed that Councillor Brocklehurst could raise it with SACRE to see if 

they could propose a representative. 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



Children’s Scrutiny Panel 13.10.21                                                                                                    2 
 

4c. Chatsworth Engage 
The clerk had contacted Dr Hanbury (CEO of Chatsworth Academy Trust) for further information 

about Chatsworth Engage and had circulated the outline he provided to all panel members.  Dr 
Hanbury had offered to attend a future meeting to update the panel on Chatsworth Engage and 
the panel agreed to add this to the abeyance list for future consideration. 

 
 Resolved:  That, the panel agreed to add Chatsworth Engage to the abeyance list for future 

consideration 

5. Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) Presentation 

The Early Help manager (Kate Berry) and Head of Complex Needs – SEN (Geoff Catterall) gave a 

presentation (which had been circulated with the papers for the meeting) and highlighted the 

following. 

 Salford Family Partnership 

o It had a 0-25 remit and delivered services via the family Hubs.  

o The range of services were highlighted and the structure for each areas was outlined 

(Family Hubs and Youth Centres). 

o There was a strong offer for parents and carers with a mix of face to face and online 

provision. 

o The emphasis was working with families to identify their needs and to develop a Team 

Around The Child family model. 

 The prevalence of SEND in Salford was reported. 

o More than 1 in 5 of 0-25 had an identified SEND. This was seen as positive as it showed 

that identification was well done in Salford and at an early stage.  This was verified by 

Ofsted as they had also highlighted it as an area of strength for the local authority (LA).  

The importance of this was also raised by parents and by partner providers of the LA. 

o 16% of 0-25 of children and young people in Salford were at SEND Support and nearly 5% 

had Education Health Care plans (EHCPs).  This also highlighted the significance of the 

involvement of professionals in the identification of SEND and parents involvement was 

also key to this.   

o There were significant levels of SEND in Salford but it was recognized that the LA had a 

good track record of managing the support for children and young people at SEND Support 

in school. 

o For EHCPs, 50% of need was met in mainstream schools and provision and very good 

outcomes were being achieved so this was a very good indicator for the effectiveness of the 

LA’s inclusion strategy. 

o The age profile for EHCPs showed 16-25 year olds was at 22% of the plans and that was 

increasing.  This showed that the needs of 0-25 year olds were being identified and being 

addressed.  

 The background context of Greater Manchester and Salford was provided. 

o There was an Early Years high needs pathway for each locality. 

o A strategy group had been established in March 2021 to scope out this work in Salford as it 

was important for parents to be able to easily understand how they can access the pathway 

to get the help they need when they need it. 

o It covered all the services not just statutory services. 

 The six design principles were highlighted as: 

1. The right support was offered at the right time, based on the child’s and family’s needs. 

2. Families were assets and their needs were not pre-judged. 

Page 8



Children’s Scrutiny Panel 13.10.21                                                                                                    3 
 

3. The needs of all individuals in a family unit were met. 

4. Where appropriate support first came from the community connections and pers. 

5. Families were always informed of what was available. 

6. Families and practitioners were empowered to try new things, adapt and learn. 

 The Terms of Reference (TOR) of the High Needs/SEND Pathway Strategy Group were 

explained.  The role focused on identifying and mapping the current pathways, identifying and 

reporting on any gaps and producing an easy reference guide for parents/carers and 

professionals on how to get the appropriate support. 

 The high level mapping exercise was explained along with the pathways and the work streams.  

Examples were given such as: 

o Support available from the Neuro Development Pathway of support available to meet 

children, young people’s and families’ needs even if they had not received a formal 

diagnosis (e.g. dietary support and sleep support). 

o South Pathfinder multi-agency approach. 

o Early help and 0-19 health integration. 

o Early Years SEND Thrive:  An age related toolkit for families and professionals. 

o LA nurseries supporting vulnerable children.   

o The Assure App was developed in house to help quickly collate information to help identify 

needs and provide support. 

o A new SEND Parents/Carers Forum had been set up. 

o A Parents’ Assembly was held every six weeks online (via Teams) and this had been 

started during the pandemic.  The assembly brought together officers and professionals to 

address topics identified by parents. 

o There were challenges accessing some of the above support because of the numbers of 

requests and the impact on timescales for receiving support. 

 What else had been done. 

o A Parent/Carers Task and Finish Group. 

o SEND Thrive Strategy:  A suite of documents to support schools and setting with SEND 

processes. 

o The EHC Hub: An App where parents can access their assessment at every stage of the 

process, where parents and young people can add their own story (including video clips).  

The App facilitates developing the EHC plans online with parents/carers and young people. 

o Collaborative commissioning across GM to provide for specialist needs (e.g. visual 

impairment). 

o Speech and Language Therapy has been moved into the schools rather than the children 

and families having to travel to clinics so that school/health staff are were working with 

parents in schools. 

o Decision making panels would have representation from senior posts in education and 

health and any tribunals in Salford focused on resolution of the problems raised.   

o There had been a change of approach with the emphasis being “What can we do to 

arrange and deliver provision for children, young people and families”.   

The Chair invited questions and comments from the members and the following were raised. 

 A member asked about the Triple P for Teenagers and how it worked and how accessible 

services really were.  It was explained that the Triple P Parenting Course was delivered with 

CAMHS.  In terms of accessibility, some referrals came from professionals and some were via 

other routes such as schools.  The high level of demand impacted on accessibility as referrals 

had to be prioritised. 

Page 9



Children’s Scrutiny Panel 13.10.21                                                                                                    4 
 

 A member asked what it was like for families to access services, especially those on SEND 

Support, and what were the wait times.  It was explained that all the referrals were screened for 

safeguarding and the parents would be contacted straight away and support would be provided 

for their presenting needs by Early Help.  Support was provided based on the lived experience 

of the children/young people and their families rather than waiting for a formal diagnosis.  The 

Early Help practitioner would make contact within five days and would start assessing needs 

straight away. 

 A member asked if there had been increased referrals since the start of the pandemic.  It was 

confirmed that they had increased and particularly certain types of referrals such mental health 

and finance.  Contacts were being made within the five days and steps were being taken to try 

and reduce this timescale to three days. 

  Member commented that they were very pleased and excited by the developments.  Early 

identification was key and congratulations were given for the high identification of needs and 

provision of EHCPs as appropriate and the low number of tribunals and the focus on resolution 

with the tribunals that were lodged.  It was confirmed that the strategy was to focus on early 

identification to get the child/young person/family on the pathway early s that needs could be 

addressed as quickly as possible.  The low number of tribunals saved money and also 

supported parents as resolution of any problems/issues was the focus. 

 A member asked if there were any areas that were not as well covered.  It was explained that 

by bringing professionals together, not bound by locality boundaries, and focusing on the 

needs of the families meant that the approach was flexible.  The Family Hubs tended to have a 

universal offer but services could go to the family’s home if that was needed.  Work was 

ongoing to identify where provision needed to be extended and a current example of this was 

Irlam and Cadishead College (ICC) and the Eccles Gateway.   

 A member asked about access for families at ICC as they were concerned that access may be 

restricted due to it being a school. The Early Help Manager did not think this was an issue and 

arrangements were in place but they would check and send further information to members 

about the Irlam Centre. 

 A member asked about waiting lists and late/delayed diagnosis due to Covid-19.  It was 

confirmed that 18 month reviews by Early Help had continued throughout the pandemic to try 

and ensure there was not a backlog.  There were also close working relationships with health 

visitors and the midwifery service. 

 A member requested that Ward Councillors were kept updated about the developments and 

particularly if services were being extending in their area.  They that this was not currently 

happening for them in their ward and his would help them advise their constituents more 

effectively.   

 A member expressed their concern that private providers were filling gaps left by the lack of LA 

provision. 

 A member asked if there was enough Top-Up Funding to pay for the services.  It was 

explained that early identification helped to save money in the longer term as it prevented 

issues and problems escalating. The High Needs Funding was under review and some LAs 

were challenging the level of funding they were receiving and LAs were continuing to lobby 

Government. 

 A member commented that they would have found it more useful to have had an 

accompanying report with the presentation that outlined the background detail.  This could 

have be read in advance and the meeting could then have been used to scrutinise the 

information, rather than to pull out the information. 

Page 10



Children’s Scrutiny Panel 13.10.21                                                                                                    5 
 

 The Chair commented that the panel had requested on many occasions that presentations by 

officers were always accompanied by a full report and asked that this happened for future 

meetings.  

The Chair thanked the Head of Complex Needs and the Early Help Locality Manager for their 

presentation.  On behalf of the panel the Chair thanked all the staff involved, as early intervention 

and the Salford Way was having a positive impact on Salford families for the update and 

commented that it was very good to see how the approach had progressed and how early 

intervention and whole family support was having a positive impact on the young people and their 

families and also ensuring the best use of resources.  

 Resolved: That, the Children’s Scrutiny Panel: 

1. Requested that all presentations by officers at panel meetings were accompanied by a 

detailed report in advance of the meetings. 

2. Noted the presentation and gave their thanks for the informative presentation. 

6. The Work Programme and Membership 

7a. The Work Programme 

 Chatsworth Engage was added to the abeyance list as discussed earlier. 

7b. Membership 

 The following vacancies still remained:  

o A parent governor vacancy – to be filled by an election. 

o A Labour Party vacancy (to fill the place left vacant by Councillor Walker) 

o A representative from the Free Churches. 

o A Roman Catholic Diocesan Representative. 

Resolved:  That, the Children’s Scrutiny Panel agreed that Councillor Brocklehurst would 

approach SACRE for a representative to fill the Free Church vacancy.  the meeting to discuss the 

CPP would be convened as outlined above.  

 

7. Any Other business (AOB) 

There were no items of AOB. 

8. Date, time and venue for next meeting 

 The meeting will be held on Wednesday 8th December 2021 at 6pm (5:30pm briefing for 

members).   

 The venue for the meeting is Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Old Town Hall Building.  

Members must attend in person. 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 Part 1-OPEN TO THE PUBLIC   ITEM NO. 

 
 

REPORT OF 
Director of Public Health 

 
TO  

CHILDRENS SCRUTINY PANEL 
ON  

8th December 2021 

 
 

Childhood Obesity Update and work towards a Healthy Weight Strategy in Salford 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 

 To note of the current position and the data analysis of excess weight of children in 

Salford. 

 

 To review the findings from the recent mapping of the family weight management 

pathway and gap analysis.  

 

 To note the developments arising from external investment towards tackling obesity in 

the Early Years 

 

 To note the progress towards a whole-systems approach which will be embodied within 

the next Childhood Healthy Weight Strategy 

 
 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The following report is intended to highlight the growing problem of obese and overweight 
children and young people in Salford. It will provide an update on the current level of need 
within the local population, as well as the findings from a review of the existing family weight 
management pathways, including any gaps. 
 
In addition, the report will provide an outline of additional resources secured recently to 
address obesity/overweight in the Early Years and ways of integrating operational delivery, as 
a means of working towards a whole systems approach.  
 
Further, that this report will highlight how this body of work will be consolidated and used to 
inform strategic action which will form part of Salford’s Healthy Weight Strategy. 
 

 
 
KEY DECISION: No 

 
 
1. Introduction 

 

1.1. Obesity is an intractable public health problem, both globally and in the UK, with current 

trends suggesting the problem is worsening. To compound matters, restrictions 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

imposed as a result of the recent global pandemic may have exacerbated the problem 

further. According to a recent survey from the Zoe Covid Study, while some people ate 

better and exercised more during lockdown, there was a net increase in the 

population’s consumption of unhealthy foods and in sedentary behaviour (Berry, Tobi 

and Gardner, 2021). 

 

1.2. Over the past eighteen months, lockdown restrictions have also disrupted normal 

delivery of the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP). Each year, this 

programme records the height, weight and Body Mass Index (BMI) of every Salford 

pupil in Reception and Year 6 of mainstream education. Within the present academic 

year, as a direct result of the pandemic disruption, Salford is set to provide just a 10% 

representative sample of measurements, as opposed to the normal 95%+ coverage. 

The resultant NCMP data that is soon to be published will therefore only be a 

prevalence estimate based upon the sample, which raises questions around its 

reliability. Irrespective, there are already emerging anecdotal reports locally which 

point towards a significant increase in the prevalence of overweight and obese children 

in Salford and it is assumed that the upwards trend will continue. 

 

1.3. Childhood obesity is problematic for several reasons. Not only is it linked to various 

physical health conditions, such asthma, early onset type 2 diabetes and 

cardiovascular risk factors but it is also associated with mental health and behavioural 

problems. Moreover, childhood obesity is a strong predictor of obesity in adulthood and 

can have long-term health consequences across the life course. The estimated costs 

to the NHS for the treatment of obesity-related health conditions are estimated to be 

£6.1 billion per year (DHSC 2020). 

 
1.4. The drivers for obesity are multifactorial and incredibly complex. Any combination of 

factors such as poverty, access to good quality food, familial and cultural influences 

around food, built environment and social norms, cookery skills, mental health and 

physical (in)activity can all combine to affect whether or not a person can maintain a 

healthy weight. An added complication for children and young people is the potential 

for variance in their rate of growth and development, which means that the use of BMI 

as a measure of obesity is perhaps less definitive than with adults. Nevertheless, this 

does not detract from the overall population trend data which indicates a growing 

problem. 

 
1.5. In order to have any impact on flattening this upward trajectory and eventually reducing 

the prevalence of obesity, efforts and action must focus on each of these drivers. The 

cumulative effects of those many actions will form the basis of a whole systems 

approach to tackle obesity in Salford. As a prelude to that much larger body of work, it 

is essential for the local system to be assured that the current weight management 

pathway for Children and Young People is evidence-based, relevant, effective and 

meets local need. Once assured of this, work can then expand to other aspects of a 

whole systems approach. 

 
 

2. Background 

 

2.1. Recent figures show that 63.0% adults in the UK are overweight and obese (OHID, 

2021). 

 

Page 14



3 
 

2.2. Obesity prevalence is highest amongst the most deprived groups in society. Children 

in the most deprived parts of the country are more than twice as likely to be obese than 

those living in the least deprived areas. 

 
2.3. Costs to the NHS for the treatment of obesity-related health conditions are estimated 

to be £6.1 billion per year (DHSC 2020). 

 
 
2.4. Obesity is associated with reduced life expectancy and a range of health conditions 

including type 2 diabetes, cardiovascular disease, liver and respiratory disease and 

cancer. Obesity can also have an impact on mental health. 

 
2.5. Childhood obesity leads to significantly higher risks of obesity in adulthood. Tackling 

obesity earlier in childhood reduces the cumulative health harms experienced across 

the life course 

 
2.6. Childhood obesity should be addressed alongside adult obesity.  If a child has an 

obese parent their risk of childhood obesity is higher, and if both parents and siblings 

are obese, the risk is even higher.  This is largely due to lifestyle factors and behaviours 

the family share such as high sugar and high fat diets and sedentary leisure time. 

 
2.7. The Government’s ambition is to achieve ‘a sustained downward trend in the level of 

excess weight in children by 2020’. 

 
 

 

3. The National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP) 

 

3.1. Since the academic year of 2006-07, Public Health has a mandate to complete the 

National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP) for all Salford school children in 

Reception Class and Year 6. 

 
3.2. There are two current indicators used to monitor childhood obesity: prevalence of 

overweight/obesity and coverage of NCMP (% children measured) for Reception and 

Year 6 children. NCMP coverage for Salford is usually excellent (circa 95%) meaning 

greater reliability with respect to the trend data. 

 
3.3. NCMP delivery was hampered nationally due to school closures during lockdown. This 

will impact upon the latest 2019-20 dataset which are soon to be published. This data 

will be an estimate only, based upon a representative 10% sample of the target 

population. 

 

3.4. Within the programme, each child’s height and weight are measured and used to 

calculate their Body Mass Index. This calculation divides their weight by the square of 

their height. Children are classified as overweight if their BMI is on or above the 85th 

centile of the British 1990 growth reference (UK90) according to age and sex. Children 

are classified as obese if their BMI is on or above the 95th centile. 

 
3.5. In 2018/19, NCMP coverage for Salford was 97.3% this was the fifth highest rate in 

the North West and exceeded the national and local target. 

 

Page 15



4 
 

3.6. In the same year, validated figures from the NCMP Programme (2018-19) for Salford 

shows that: 

 

 In Reception, 11.3% of children were obese, a slight increase on the previous 

year (11.0%) and substantially higher than the England average (9.7%). 

 In Year 6, 23.1% of children were obese, a slight increase on the previous year 

(22.7%) and substantially higher than the England average (20.2%). 

 

 

 

4. Prevalence of Need 

 

4.1 The trend data from 2006-07 to 2019-20 in the following graphs compares rates of 

overweight and obesity in Salford to that in England. 

 

4.2 The most recent data has been used in the presentation of graphs below but it should 

be noted that the Office of Health and Disparities (formerly Public Health England) is 

about to publish local prevalence estimates for 2020-21 in the coming weeks. 

 

Fig 1: Prevalence of Overweight/Obesity among Reception Class Pupils in Salford 
 

 

 

4.3 The data shows that 26.0% of Reception pupils in 2019-20 were overweight, of which 

just under half of that cohort (11.4%) were considered to be obese. 

 

4.4 In the same year, the prevalence of overweight pupils for Year 6 has grown to 38.9%, 

of which nearly two thirds (25.2%) were considered to be obese. 

 

4.5 For a like-for-like comparison, using the same group, Year 6 pupils in 2019-20 will be 

more or less the same group as those measured in Reception in 2013-4. In that year, 

23.0% of pupils were overweight, of which two-fifths of that cohort (9.6%) considered 

to be obese. Thus, the growth in the prevalence of overweight and obesity becomes 

even more pronounced. 

 
 

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

Proportion of Reception Pupils considered to be 
obese or overweight/obese

Obese Salford Obese England

Overweight and Obese Salford Overweight and Obese England

Page 16



5 
 

 

 
Fig 2: Prevalence of Overweight/Obesity among Year 6 Class Pupils in Salford 

 

 
 

 
4.6 The data presented in the graphs above does not include any measurements taken 

either during or since the pandemic. With the reported increase in unhealthy diets and 

physical inactivity during the various periods of lockdown, it is highly likely that this 

problem is going to increase. 

 
4.7 This is supported within the latest national data to be published in recent weeks, which 

does include post-COVID measurements. The Office of Health and Disparities has 

reported a 4.5% increase in obesity in both Reception and Year 6 pupils across 

England, following the pandemic. If Salford follows the current national trend, then the 

proportion of overweight and obese children in Salford is going to increase 

considerably. 

 
4.8 In the graphs below, data is presented which benchmarks Salford with other GM local 

authorities, with only two other areas (Tameside and Rochdale) with greater 

prevalence of overweight and obesity 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

Proportion of Year 6 pupils considered to be 
obese or overweight/obese

Obese Salford Obese England

Overweight and Obese Salford Overweight and Obese England

Page 17



6 
 

 

 
Fig 3: GM Overweight and Obesity Combined – Reception (4-5 year olds) 

 

 
Please note that Bolton and Bury did not have valid measurement data for 2019-20 

 
 
 
Fig 4: GM Overweight and Obesity Combined – Year 6 (10-11 year olds) 

 

 
Please note that Bolton and Bury did not have valid measurement data for 2019-20 

Page 18



7 
 

 
4.9 Analysis of national data shows a strong relationship between deprivation and 

overweight and obesity, however this is less pronounced in Salford which suggests 

greater complexity and a more nuanced picture. 

 

 

Fig 5: Overweight and Obesity Combined by Ward – Reception (4-5 year olds) 

 

 
 
 

Fig 6: Overweight and Obesity Combined by Ward – Year 6 (10-11 year olds) 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 19



8 
 

 

5. Review of the Family Weight Management Pathway 

5.1. Prior to any new developments being undertaken, it is essential that the basic buildings 

blocks of family weight management services are in place and that the pathway is 

working effectively. To this end, work has been undertaken to map and review the 

existing family weight management pathway 

5.2. From this review, a number of areas were identified which require attention or 

improvement: 

 Making Every Contact Count (increasing opportunities for referral in) 

- Referrals into Tier 2 Family Weight Management Services (the Red Pepper 

Programme) tends to be via GP/social care at crisis point. Earlier identification and 

referral needed from other parts of the system. 

 Reactive offer of support via NCMP – tighten via parental opt out letter 

- Onus currently on parents to seek support when child is identified as overweight 

or obese within the National Child Measurement Programme. Instead, changes 

will allow Red Pepper to proactively contact parents. 

 Over ten years since Red Pepper Programme was devised – time for a review? 

- The Red Pepper Programme has been operating in its current format since about 

2011. It is therefore timely to review the programme against best 

practice/guidance. 

 Capacity of programme vs growing need 

- Currently, the programme is funded to support 120 children (and their family 

members) per annum. Given the growing demand that the data suggests, this is 

likely to need additional investment or an alternative approach. 

 Urgency of problem requires greater ambition re measures of success 

- Current targets do not sufficiently incentivise a weight reduction. 

 Potential disconnection between different tiers 

- Overall, there seems to be no communication between tiers of support, which 

inhibits the step up/step down approach that a tiered system is intended to provide, 

so as to match patient need to the most appropriate level of support. 

 Lack of follow-on support is an identified gap to sustain change 

- A key gap for professionals is a need for some aftercare support to help patients 

to maintain their weight reduction over the longer term. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



9 
 

 
6 Tackling Obesity in the Early Years – the Amsterdam Model 

 

6.1. Salford has recently secured NHS funding towards the development of a GM test site 

for tackling overweight/obesity in the Early Years. This acknowledges the continued 

need for weight management support for older children but focussed heavily on public 

health prevention much earlier in the life course 

6.2. The pilot will attempt to understand the causes of obesity including underlying 

psychological mechanisms, individual lifestyle factors, and living and working 

conditions, within the context of structural determinants. 

6.3. This will bring potential funding circa £300k per annum across two years to develop 

integrated working across Maternity, Early Years, Dietetics, schools, community, etc. 

6.4. Individual elements include: 

- Strong emphasis on co-production/co-development of solutions with local 

communities. 

- Consolidating existing work with BAME communities around culturally appropriate 

approaches. 

- Working with families living in poverty and with foodbanks/food clubs to improve 

the quality of food offered, food literacy and cooking skills. 

- Focus on maternity pathways with weight management support for mothers with 

raised BMIs and in respect of information around nutrition and infant feeding. 

- Review of food nutrition and information provided via private, voluntary and 

independent childcare providers. 

- Acknowledging co-morbidity of mental health problems among overweight/obese, 

as both a symptom and driver. 

- Supporting tech enablement through the Assure App to promote opportunities to 

Make Every Contact Count. 

6.5. The pilot will enlist the support of Salford University to evaluate the pilot in terms of the 

promotion of integrated practices and for impact. 

6.6. This pilot is an opportunity to build strong foundations for a whole-systems approach 

which will inevitably follow. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



10 
 

7 A Whole Systems Approach – Salford’s Healthy Weight Strategy 

 
7.1 As discussed earlier, the drivers of overweight and obesity are complex and 

multifactorial. Data analysis also shows that this is particularly true of Salford compared 

to the national picture. 

 

7.2 In order to have any impact on this growing problem, mitigating actions must be both 

varied and multi-faceted. Better integration of collective purpose across the system, as 

well as the cumulative gains derived from multiple actions will be necessary to success. 

 
7.3 The following recommendations (though not exhaustive) should form the basis of 

Salford’s future Healthy Weight Strategy: 

 
- Reinvigoration of the Healthy Weight Declaration 

- Securing senior support for this approach at the highest level 

- Bottom-up re-design of the healthy weight strategy, with cross-cutting 

integration with other strategies. e.g. physical activity, licensing and planning, 

green spaces, etc. 

- Securing the best possible start for pregnant mothers and their new babies 

- Developing a comprehensive healthy school offer from catering, PHSE 

education, physical exercise 

- Influencing all aspects of the built environment, including planning to promote 

healthy food choices, opportunities to engage in physical activities and use of  

green spaces, etc. 

- Level up access to and quality of food available to all communities within 

Salford, with particular focus on those living in poverty 

- Halve childhood obesity in Salford by 2030 

 

7.4 Following the mobilisation of the Early Years obesity pilot, work will begin on the 

strategic development of a whole-systems approach. This will be embodied within 

Salford’s Healthy Weight Strategy. 

 

7.5 Finally, while support for this approach at the most senior level is important, this is 

likely to be insufficient without the support of local communities. Their participation in 

the co-production of the Healthy Weight Strategy will be the most critical aspect of 

delivering successful health outcomes. 

 
References 

 

Berry, S., Tobi, R. and Gardner, C. (2021). Life under lockdown:  Diet and health behaviours during 
COVID-19. London: ZOE COVID Study. 
Available at:  https://covid.joinzoe.com/post/webinar-covid-diet-health-behaviours  

[Accessed 23/08/2021] 
 
Department of Health and Social Care (2020).  Tack ling obesity: empowering adults and children to 

live healthier lives. London: Department of Health and Social Care. 
Available at:  https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/tackling-obesity-government-
strategy/tackling-obesity-empowering-adults-and-children-to-live-healthier-lives#fn:16  

[Accessed 23/08/2021] 
 

Office of Health Inequalities and Disparities (2021). Obesity Profile. London: OHID. 

Available at:  https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/national-child-measurement-programme  
[Accessed 23/08/2021] 

  

Page 22

https://covid.joinzoe.com/post/webinar-covid-diet-health-behaviours
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/tackling-obesity-government-strategy/tackling-obesity-empowering-adults-and-children-to-live-healthier-lives#fn:16
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/tackling-obesity-government-strategy/tackling-obesity-empowering-adults-and-children-to-live-healthier-lives#fn:16
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/national-child-measurement-programme


11 

 

 
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Health & Wellbeing 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  Not at this stage 

 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:   Medium  

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not at this stage 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Not at this stage 

 
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Not at this stage 
 

 
HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:   Not at this stage 

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  Public Health

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:  Steven Gavin     
    

 
 
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  All Wards 
 

 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Deep Dive Child Healthy Weight 

Debbie Blackburn Assistant Director Public Health 

Nursing and Wellbeing 

P
age 25



The Big Picture

• Obesity is considered to be one of the most 
serious public health challenges of the 21st 
century. Without action, the health of 
individuals will continue to suffer, health 
inequalities associated with obesity will remain 
and the economic and social costs will increase 
to unsustainable levels.

• NHS Treatment Costs for obesity-related health 
conditions is estimated to be £6.1bn per year 
(DHSC 2020)

• Trend analysis suggests problem is getting 
worse

P
age 26



P
age 27



Obesity harms in adulthood

P
age 28



Child Health Profile Data March 2021 PHE

P
age 29



Where were we pre-pandemic?

P
age 30



P
age 31



Please note that Bolton and Bury did not have valid measurement data for 2019-20

P
age 32



Please note that Bolton and Bury did not have valid measurement data for 2019-20

P
age 33



But then COVID hit …

• Zoe COVID study suggested a net population 
increase in the  consumption of comfort food 
and sedentary behaviour during  (Berry, Tobi 
and Gardner, 2021)

• Disruption to NCMP delivery across 2019-
2021, leading to prevalence estimates

• Latest national data suggests a 4.5% increase 
in obesity in both Reception and in Year 6

• If Salford is consistent with the national 
picture, then circa 16% of Reception and 30% 
of Year 6 will be considered obese locally

P
age 34



Getting the basics right

• Mapping and review of existing family weight management pathways

• Thematic learning:

- Making every contact count (increasing opportunities for referral in)

- Reactive offer of support via NCMP – tighten via opt out

- Over ten years since Red Pepper Programme was devised – time for a review?

- Capacity of programme vs growing need

- Urgency of problem requires greater ambition re measures of success

- Potential disconnection between different tiers

- Lack of follow-on support is an identified gap to sustain change

P
age 35



Learning from elsewhere – The Amsterdam Model 

• Understanding the causes of obesity including 
underlying psychological mechanisms, individual 
lifestyle factors, and living and working conditions, 
within the context of structural determinants.

• Significant investment to develop integrated working 
across Maternity, Early Years, Dietetics, schools, 
community, etc.

• Secured buy-in at the most senior level.

• Focus on a whole systems approach but using a twin-
track approach of preventative and curative

P
age 36



Amsterdam 
Model 
Principles  

Eradicating overweight and obesity is a long-term 
task that will take a generation

The programme, actions and activities must be 
sustainable

The programme is inclusive of all people and across 
all policy areas

Addressing childhood obesity is a matter of shared 
responsibility

The approach is evidence-based - ‘learning by 
doing, doing by learning’

Choices must be made to focus efforts

Prevention first, but do not forget children of the 
present

P
age 37



The short and the long game

• Recognition that evidence of impact may ultimately 
span a generation

• Shorter-term aims required to act as milestones 
and maintain momentum to longer-term goals

• Distinction described as the sprint and the 
marathon

P
age 38



The Sprint

P
age 39



Salford Translation – GM Integration Bid: Tackling obesity in the Early Years

• Potential investment of £600k over 2 years if initial pilot is 
successful

• Targeted towards preventative interventions at source

• Emphasis on co-development of solutions with community, 
partners and key stakeholders

• Action learning with similar NHSE test sites i.e. 
Gloucestershire

• Opportunity to scale up across all of GM

P
age 40



Salford Translation – GM Integration Bid: Tackling obesity in the Early Years

• Focus on maternity and pregnant mothers with raised BMI

- Nutrition, infant-feeding support and referral of mum to 
More Life maternity weight management support

• Private, voluntary and independent nurseries/child-minders

- assuring quality of food provision and education

• Reaching out to families living in poverty

- CVS support to Foodbanks/Food Clubs around quality of      
food provided, food literacy, cooking skills, etc.

• Reaching out to BAME communities

- culturally sensitive solutions, information in other 
languages

P
age 41



Salford Translation – GM Integration Bid: Tackling obesity in the Early Years

• Acknowledging co-morbidity with mental health

- Both as a symptom and driver of obesity

• Developing tech-enablement to improve MECC

- assuring quality of food provision and education

• Complete current review of weight management pathways

- Fit for purpose or re-design?

P
age 42



The Marathon

P
age 43



A whole-systems 
approach to 
obesity or a 

whole systems 
approach to 

healthy lifestyles?

• Reinvigoration of the Healthy Weight Declaration

• Securing senior support for this approach at the highest level

• Bottom-up re-design of the healthy weight strategy, with 
cross-cutting integration with other strategies. e.g. physical 
activity, licensing and planning, green spaces, etc.

• Securing the best possible start for pregnant mothers and 
their new babies

• Developing a comprehensive healthy school offer from 
catering, PHSE education, physical exercise

• Influencing all aspects of the built environment, including 
planning to promote healthy food choices, opportunities to 
engage in physical activities and use of green spaces, etc.

• Level up access to and quality of food available to all 
communities within Salford, with particular focus on those 
living in poverty

• Halve childhood obesity in Salford by 2030

P
age 44



Any questions?

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Children’s Scrutiny Panel  

Work Programme and Recommendations 2021-22 

 

 

SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE DATES & AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Date Topic/Action 

 

Responsible officer (s) 

14 April 2021  GCSEs, testing and assessment 2021 – an update on the requirements for 
schools and how schools are approaching this.  

 

Cathy Starbuck 

9 June 2021  Business planning/Work programme development 

 The GM agenda and how this affects the Children’s Services. 

Charlotte Ramsden 
Strategic Director - People 
 

14 July 2021  Children’s Dental Health 

 Education Recovery Update 

 Business and work programme planning 

 Standard item:  Corporate Parenting meeting feedback from member(s) in 
attendance – Feedback from development day (review of CP) held on 8th 

July and the LGA CP Forum.   
 

 

Cathy Starbuck 
 

8 September 2021  NEET Reduction Strategy 

 Budget monitoring (quarterly item) 

 Standard item:  Corporate Parenting meeting feedback from member(s) in 

attendance. 
 

Sarah Scanlan 

Chris Mee 

13 October 2021  Mental Health and Schools to be re-scheduled 

 Childhood obesity strategy update to be rescheduled 

 Route 29  

 Budget Monitoring (quarterly item) – re-scheduled from September 

 Standard item:  Corporate Parenting meeting feedback from member(s) in 
attendance. 

 

Debbie Blackburn 

Debbie Blackburn 
Sayma Khan 
Chris Mee 

10 November 2021  Early Help and SEND 

 Standard item:  Corporate Parenting meeting feedback from member(s) in 

Rebecca Bibby and  
Geoff Catterall 

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 5



                                     

Last updated 10.11.21 2 

attendance. 

8 December 2021  Mental Health and Schools to be re-scheduled To Jan/Feb 

 Childhood obesity strategy update to be rescheduled 

 Budget monitoring (quarterly item) 

 Standard item:  Corporate Parenting meeting feedback from member(s) in 
attendance. 

Debbie Blackburn 

Debbie Blackburn 
Chris Mee 

12 January 2022  Mental Health and Schools (re-scheduled)? 

 Transition policies (children’s to adult health services) 

 Standard item:  Corporate Parenting meeting feedback from member(s) in 

attendance. 
 

Debbie Blackburn  

9 February 2022  Mental Health and Schools (re-scheduled)? 

 Inclusion Strategy and Extension of the Virtual School Headteacher Duties 

 Childhood Obesity data update 

 Standard item:  Corporate Parenting meeting feedback from member(s) in 
attendance. 
 

Cathy Starbuck and Sue 

Johnson 
Debbie Blackburn 

9 March 2022  Bridge Transformation 

 

 Service Group Budgets 

 Standard item:  Corporate Parenting meeting feedback from member(s) in 
attendance. 

 

Rebecca Bibby and  

Zoe Fearon 
Chris Mee 

13 April 2022  Team Around the School 

 Annual report from Corporate Parenting Group 

Rebecca Bibby 
Rebekah Tucker 

New Municipal year  

 

11th May 2022  Risky Behaviours  

Regular monitoring reports  

 Service Group Budgets (quarterly - Chris Mee/Dave Cope) 

 Updates from the Corporate Parenting Board (12 monthly – Rebekah Tucker) 

 Service Group priorities (annually)  

 

P
age 48



                                     

Last updated 10.11.21 3 

 School Performance Data (annually - Cathy Starbuck) 

                                                         Topics in abeyance  

Children’s Dental Health  

Children’s Obesity  

The GM agenda and how this affects the CS  

The NHS Reforms and the impact on the Integrated Fund.  

Chatsworth Engage – Dr Hanbury  
Reviews 

 
 

Accessing Children’s and Young People’s Mental Health Services (deferred) Councillor Edwards 

Review of Route 29   
 

RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER 

Title of Report  Date of submissions and responses Responsible Lead Member/officer 

   

 
Portfolio of the Board: 

 
Membership – 12 Members (10 Lab 2 Con) 

 Children in Need 

 Integrated Looked after Children 

 Early Intervention 

 Children’s Safeguarding 

 Integrated Youth Support including Youth Offender Service 

 Complex Needs Inclusion 

 Complex Needs SEN 

 School Provider Arm 

 Starting Life Well 

 Transforming Learning 

 Skills and Work 

 Primary School Place Planning programmes 

 Partnerships and Commissioning (including the Children and Young 
People’s Trust) 

 To scrutinise the council’s business plan and budget in this functional 

area. 

1. Cllr A Brocklehurst (Chair) 
2. Cllr J Brooks 

3. Councillor K Garrido 
4. Councillor A Leitner 
5. Cllr L Nelson 

6. Cllr M Pevitt 
7. Cllr N Reynolds 
8. Cllr Robinson-Smith 

9. Cllr M Wade 
10.  Cllr Joan Walsh (Vice Chair) 
11.  Cllr C Weir 

12.  Vacancy (Labour) 

 

Voting representatives: 

 One Church of England Diocesan 

representative – Dr Keith Archer 

 One Roman Catholic Diocesan 
representative – vacant 

 One representative from the Free 
Churches – vacant 

 One representative from the 
Jewish faith – Alex Klein 

 Two parent-governor 
representatives - Yolanda Amana 
Ghola, 1 vacancy. 

 
Co-opted Members – non voting  
Ms Jacqui Morrissey 

Mrs Judith Elderkin 

 
Lead member: Councillor Jim Cammell (Exec Support Cllr John Walsh)  

P
age 49



                                     

Last updated 10.11.21 4 

Key Officers: Charlotte Ramsden, Cathy Starbuck, Zoe Fearon, Debbie 

Blackburn, Beck Bibby)  
 

P
age 50


	Agenda
	 GUIDANCE FOR THE RETURN TO FACE TO FACE COUNCIL MEETINGS FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	3 Childhood Obesity Strategy Update - Debbie Blackburn
	Obesity Deep Dive CSP 08.12.21

	5 Work programme & membership

